
 
 

April 11, 2022                                                                           - 1 -                                                                               6:40 PM 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 11, 2022 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General 
Services Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 
 
The Clovis City Council meetings are open to the public at the physical address listed above. There 
are numerous ways to participate in the City Council meetings: you are able to attend in person; you 
may submit written comments as described below; you may participate by calling in by phone (see 
“Verbal Comments” below); and you may view the meeting which is webcast and accessed at 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas. 
 

Written Comments 
 

 Members of the public are encouraged to submit written comments at: 
www.cityofclovis.com/agendas at least two (2) hours before the meeting (4:00 p.m.).  You 
will be prompted to provide:  

 

 Council Meeting Date 
 Item Number 
 Name 
 Email 
 Comment  

 

 Please submit a separate form for each item you are commenting on. 
 

 A copy of your written comment will be provided to the City Council noting the item number.  
If you wish to make a verbal comment, please see instructions below. 

 

 Please be aware that any written comments received that do not specify a particular agenda 
item will be marked for the general public comment portion of the agenda. 

 
 If a written comment is received after 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting, efforts will be 

made to provide the comment to the City Council during the meeting.  However, staff cannot 
guarantee that written comments received after 4:00 p.m. will be provided to City Council 
during the meeting.  All written comments received prior to the end of the meeting will be 
made part of the record of proceedings. 

 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

file:///C:/Users/dianab/Downloads/www.cityofclovis.com/agendas
http://www.cityofclovis.com/agendas/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


April 11, 2022                                                                           - 2 -                                                                               6:40 PM 

Verbal Comments 
 

 If you wish to speak to the Council on an item by telephone, you should contact the City 
Clerk at (559) 324-2060 no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 

 
 You will be asked to provide your name, phone number, and your email. You will be emailed 

instructions to log into Webex to participate in the meeting.  Staff recommends participants 
log into the Webex at 5:30 p.m. the day of the meeting to perform an audio check. 

 
 All callers will be placed on mute, and at the appropriate time for your comment your 

microphone will be unmuted. 
 

 In order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 
minutes per topic 

 
Webex Participation 
 

 Reasonable efforts will be made to allow written and verbal comment from a participant 
communicating with the host of the virtual meeting.  To do so, a participant will need to chat 
with the host and request to make a written or verbal comment.  The host will make 
reasonable efforts to make written and verbal comments available to the City Council.  Due 
to the new untested format of these meetings, the City cannot guarantee that these written 
and verbal comments initiated via chat will occur.  Participants desiring to make a verbal 
comment via chat will need to ensure that they accessed the meeting with audio 
transmission capabilities.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Mouanoutoua 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City 
Council on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order 
for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 

2



April 11, 2022                                                                           - 3 -                                                                               6:40 PM 

ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 
 

1. Administration - Approval - Minutes from the April 4, 2022, Council Meeting. 
2. General Services - Approval – Selection of Roofing Contractor to Repair/Re-coat the 

Roof of Building A at the Corporation Yard. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the City Council, for which special notice has been given and may be required.  When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 
 

3. Consider Introduction – Ord. 22-___, Amending Clovis Municipal Code Section 
2.1.32 establishing salaries of City Councilmembers and increasing the present 
salary to become effective after the November 2022 municipal election. 

 
Staff: Karey Cha, City Clerk 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS - Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 
 

4. Consider Approval – Authorize the City Manager to execute an Amendment to the 
Disposition and Development Agreement and Grant Deed Containing Covenants, 
Conditions and Restrictions with Innovative Development and Living Solutions of 
California to provide an additional $75,000 in grant funding, secure two additional 
affordable housing units and ensure the continued affordability and availability of the 
Magnolia Crossing supportive senior housing development. 

 
Staff: Claudia Cazares, Management Analyst 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
CLOSED SESSION - A “closed door” (not public) City Council meeting, allowed by State law, for 
consideration of pending legal matters and certain matters related to personnel and real estate 
transactions. 
 

5. Government Code Section 54957.6 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Agency Designated Representatives: John Holt, Andrew Haussler, Jeffrey Blanks, 
Shonna Halterman, Lori Shively, Scott G. Cross 
Employee Organization: Clovis Police Officers Association, Clovis Firefighters 
Association, Clovis Employees Association, Clovis Public Works Employees 
Association, Clovis Public Safety Employees Association, Clovis Professional and 
Technical Employees Association, Clovis Transit Employees Bargaining Unit, Clovis 
Technical and Financial Professionals Association, and Unrepresented Employee: 
Management Employees 

3



April 11, 2022                                                                           - 4 -                                                                               6:40 PM 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 
 
Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
 
April 18, 2022 (Mon.) 
May 2, 2022 (Mon.) 
May 9, 2022 (Mon.) 
May 16, 2022 (Mon.) Budget Introduction 
June 6, 2022 (Mon.) 
June 13, 2022 (Mon.) Budget Adoption 
June 20, 2022 (Mon.) 
 

4



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
 
April 4, 2022        6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Flores at 6:01 
Flag Salute led by Councilmember Bessinger 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Bessinger, Whalen, Mayor Flores 

 
Commissioner Antuna, Bedsted, Cunningham, Hatcher, Chair Hinkle 
 

Absent: Councilmember Mouanoutoua 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:02 
NONE 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR – 6:02 
 
Mayor Flores identified a conflict of interest with Items 11 and 12 due to owning property within 
1000 feet of the projects and will abstain from voting on these items. 
 
1. Administration - Approved - Minutes from the March 14, 2022, Council Meeting. 
2. Finance – Received and Filed – Investment Report for the Month of November 2021. 
3. Finance – Received and Filed – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of November 2021. 
4. Finance – Received and Filed – Investment Report for the Month of December 2021. 
5. Finance – Received and Filed – Treasurer’s Report for the Month of December 2021. 
6. General Services - Approved – Res. 22-29, Authorizing the Execution of the Certificates of 

Assurances for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP), and Submittal of One 
(1) Project for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.  

7. General Services - Approved – Selection of Contractor to Repair Water Damage at the Public 
Safety Facility. 

8. Planning and Development Services - Approved - Bid Award for CIP 22-01, Rubberized Cape 
Seal 2022; and Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the City. 

9. Planning and Development Services – Approved – Res. 22-30, A request to adopt a 
resolution approving the initiation of an application for a general plan amendment from I 
(Industrial) to O (Office) for a 2.51 acre parcel on the west side of Clovis Avenue immediately 
north of Freeway 168. 

10. Planning and Development Services – Approved – Bid Award for CIP 17-06 Old Town Clovis 
Streetscape 2021; and Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Contract on behalf of the 
City. 

 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Bessinger, that the items on 
the Consent Calendar, with the exception of Items 11 and 12, be approved. Motion carried 4-0-
1 with Councilmember Mouanoutoua absent 
 
 
 

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
11. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Res. 22-31, Final Map Tract 6349, located 

in the Northeast area of Locan Avenue and Shaw Avenue (DYP 6260, LP). 
12. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Res. 22-32, Annexation of Proposed Tract 

6349, located in the Northeast area of Locan Avenue and Shaw Avenue to the Landscape 
Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Clovis (DYP 6260, LP). 

 
Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Bessinger, that Items 11 and 12 
be approved. Motion carried 3-0-1-1, with Councilmember Mouanoutoua absent and Mayor 
Flores abstaining  
 
Councilmember Mouanoutoua arrived at 6:06 

 
 

 

ADJOURN TO THE JOINT MEETING WITH THE CLOVIS PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 
6:06 – ITEM 13 - RECEIVED AND FILED – JOINT MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

AND CITY COUNCIL. 

 

 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS – 8:05 
 
 
 
COUNCIL / COMMISSION COMMENTS – 8:05 
 
 
 

Mayor Flores adjourned the meeting of the Council to April 11, 2022  
 

Meeting adjourned:  8:28  p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor      City Clerk 

6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: April 11, 2022 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Selection of Roofing Contractor to 
Repair/Re-coat the Roof of Building A at the Corporation Yard. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Contract Agreement 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the proposal submitted by Universal Coatings, Inc. for provisions of providing repair/re-
coating of the roof of Building A at the Corporation Yard. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
There is a need to repair/re-coat the existing roofing of Building A (Administration) at the 
Corporation Yard. The current condition of the roof was graded as a “C”, which was graded on 
a letter scale from A to F; (an “A” would indicate the roof has 10+ years of life remaining, whereas 
an “F” would indicate 1 year or less of service life remaining. With our current grade of a “C”, the 
life expectancy of the roof is four years.) 
 
Staff is recommending entering into a contract with Universal Coatings, Inc. to repair/re-coat the 
failing roofing system of Building A for $64,900.00. Staff finds Universal Coatings, Inc.’s bid and 
scope of work meet the recommended needed repairs and are within budgetary constraints. 
 
Under the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) the City has 
adopted, staff developed bid documents to repair/re-coat Building A’s roof at the Corporation 
Yard. The bid documents were advertised on the City’s web-based bid management system, 
which distributed the invitation to registered vendors interested in roofing/re-coat services.  A 
public notice for the bid was also published in Fresno’s The Business Journal and local 
construction exchanges in accordance with CUPCCAA guidelines. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Corporation Yard, located at 155 North Sunnyside was built in 2002. The current roofing 
system has a life expectancy of 20 years and has begun to show adhesive failures at most of 

7

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



the parapet walls and other vertical surfaces. Failures of this nature in the roofing system allow 
water to infiltrate into the building, which causes damage to substrates as well as potential health 
risk if not addressed in a timely manner. Over the past couple of years staff has continually 
conducted yearly preventative maintenance and patching to minimize leaks.  

 
During yearly preventative maintenance/service work on HVAC systems, staff noticed the 
roofing system was failing in multiple locations. The roof was evaluated and determined roof 
repairs would need to take place within the next fiscal year. Funds were requested and 
appropriated during FY21/22 to make such repairs.  
 
Under the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) the City has 
adopted, staff developed bid documents to repair/re-coat roofing at Building ”A” of the 
Corporation Yard. The bid documents were advertised on the City’s web-based bid management 
system, which distributed the invitation to registered vendors interested in roofing/re-coat 
services. 
 
The City’s web-based bid management system electronically distributed the bid documents to 
twelve (12) vendors, of which ten (10) vendors downloaded bid documents for review. Six (6) 
roofing vendors were represented at the mandatory pre-proposal meeting and six (6) vendors 
submitted bids to the City.  
 
Below are the results of the bidding process to repair/re-coat Building A’s roof at the Corporation 
Yard. 
 

CORPORATION YARD REPAIR/REROOFING SUMMARY 

VENDOR MATERIAL MAKEUP WARRANTY 
BID 

AMOUNT 

Universal 
Coatings, Inc. 

2 coats of Pyramic Acrylic Coating, 3 gallons per 
100 sq. for each application. 
 

5-yr. m/w-membrane 
3-year installer Warranty 
on completed assembly 

$64,900 

Brazos 
2 coats of Pyramic Acrylic Coating, 3 gallons per 
100 sq. for each application  

5-yr. m/w-membrane 
3-year installer Warranty 
on completed assembly 

$68,972 

Overhaul 
Construction 

Inc. 

2 coats of Pyramic Acrylic Coating, 3 gallons per 
100 sq. for each application  

5-yr. m/w-membrane 
3-year installer Warranty 
on completed assembly 

$79,000 

Nations Roof 
2 coats of Pyramic Acrylic Coating, 3 gallons per 
100 sq. for each application  

5-yr. m/w-membrane 
3-year installer Warranty 
on completed assembly 

$79,577 

Fresno 
Roofing 

2 coats of Pyramic Acrylic Coating, 3 gallons per 
100 sq. for each application  

5-yr. m/w-membrane 
3-year installer Warranty 
on completed assembly 

$83,450 

Pacific 
Polymers Inc.  

2 coats of Pyramic Acrylic Coating, 3 gallons per 
100 sq. for each application  

5-yr. m/w-membrane 
3-year installer Warranty 
on completed assembly 

$113,118 

 
 
 

8

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



FISCAL IMPACT 
Appropriate funds have been allocated for this expenditure under line items 76100-63459 and 
77000-63459. The Public Utilities Department allocated funding within their budget this fiscal 
year for the needed repairs; therefore, there is no negative impact to the FY 21/22 budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Existing roofing of Building A at the Corporation Yard is failing in multiple locations. During the 
site visit with roofing contractors to review recommendations for repairs, they indicated our 
current roofing system has approximately a four-year life expectancy. 

 
Pursuant to the City’s Purchasing Procedures, purchases of items/services exceeding 
$60,000.01 require City Council approval. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will prepare a contract for City Manager approval with Universal Coatings, Inc. to repair/re-
coat the roof of Building A at the Corporation Yard utilizing a two-coat acrylic coating system. 
 
Prepared by: Stephen Frankian, Facilities Maintenance and Purchasing Manager 
 
Reviewed by: City Manager _AH__  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

9

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Attachment 1 

CITY OF CLOVIS 

SMALL PROJECT CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

 

This Construction Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the City of Clovis, a California 

general law city ("City") and Universal Coating, Inc ("Contractor") with respect to the following recitals, 

which are a substantive part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective on April 18th, 2022 

("Effective Date"), following approval by the City Council. 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. City desires to obtain construction services (“Work”) for construction of the public work “ 

Corporation Yard Administration Building Roof Coating Project” (“Project”) more fully described in 

Exhibit B, and, if applicable, as further set forth in the proposal from Contractor attached as Exhibit C, 

which are incorporated herein by reference.  

 

B. Contractor is engaged in the business of public works construction and hereby warrants and 

represents that Contractor is qualified, licensed, and professionally capable of performing the Work on the 

Project. 

 

C. Contractor submitted a proposal for the Project, included herein as Exhibit C, as well as all required 

forms, bonds, certificates, and other documents (“Contractor’s Proposal”), that was approved by City for 

award of contract for the Project and is incorporated herein by reference. 

 

D. City desires to award Contractor the contract for the Work, and Contractor desires to perform the 

Work on the Project, on the terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual agreements herein, City and 

Contractor agree as follows: 

   

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Scope of Work.  Contractor shall furnish all labor, equipment and materials, including tools, 

implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the Work in a good and workmanlike manner, free 

from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material suppliers, subcontractors, artisans, machinists, 

teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for: 

 

Administration Building Roof Coating Project 

The Work shall be in strict compliance with the plans, drawings, specifications, and conditions for the 

Project and other documents relating thereto (“Project Documents”), which are incorporated herein by 

reference. Exhibit B and Exhibit C shall be part of the Project Documents, which shall be part of this 

Agreement. If the terms and requirements of this Agreement and/or Exhibit B conflict with Contractor’s 

Proposal, including Exhibit C, this Agreement and Exhibit B shall control. No contractual terms and/or 

conditions found in Contractor’s Proposal, including Exhibit C, shall purport to waive, disclaim, or limit 

Contractor’s liability, indemnification obligations, warranties, damages for breach or delay, or any security, 

bonding, or insurance requirements, and any such provisions shall have no force or effect with respect to this 

Agreement and the Work performed by Contractor.  

 

2.  Changes in the Work. Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under this Agreement 

shall be made in writing. City reserves the right to change the Work by making such alterations, deviations, 

additions to, or deletions from the plans and specifications, as may be deemed by City to be necessary or 

advisable for the proper completion or construction of the Work, and the City reserves the right to require 

10

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 2 

Contractor to perform such work. There shall be no change whatsoever in the drawings, specifications, or in 

the Work without an executed, written order by City for the change in the Work. City shall not be liable for 

the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, changes, additions, omissions, or deviations from the Project 

Documents unless the same shall have been authorized by and the cost thereof approved in writing. No 

extension of time for performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder unless such extension is made at 

the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such time duly adjusted in writing. 

 

3. Commencement of Work; Schedule; Completion of Work.  Contractor shall commence the Work 

upon City's issuance of a written "Notice to Proceed" and shall continue with the Work until Contractor has 

satisfactorily performed and completed the Work as determined by City, or until such time as the Agreement 

is terminated pursuant to Section 23 herein, whichever is earlier. Contractor shall perform the Work 

according to the schedule set forth in the Project Documents, if applicable. If no schedule is set forth in the 

Project Documents, City and Contractor shall mutually agree on a schedule for performance of the Work and 

completion of stages or milestones, if applicable. The schedule shall be subject to modification based on the 

City’s operational needs. City will notify Contractor in advance of any modification to the schedule and issue 

a written notice pursuant to Section 2, if applicable. The Project shall be completed not later than 30 days 

after the date the Notice to Proceed is issued (“Completion Date”). 

 

4. Payment for Work.  City shall pay Contractor a sum not to exceed Sixty-Four Thousand Nine 

Hundred Dollars ($64,900.00) for the Work satisfactorily performed pursuant to this Agreement, inclusive 

of all labor, equipment, materials, costs and expenses, taxes, and overhead. Contractor shall submit monthly 

invoices to City containing detailed information regarding the progress of the Work and City shall tender 

payment to Contractor within thirty (30) days after receipt of invoice, subject to Section 5, below. 

 

5. Retention and Withholding Payments. Progress payments shall be made in accordance with Public 

Contract Code sections 7201, 9203, and 20104.50. City shall retain five percent (5%) of any approved 

progress payment, except it may retain more if it makes special findings pursuant to Public Contract Code 

section 7201. City may decide to withhold a progress or retention payment in whole, or in part, to the extent 

reasonably necessary to protect City. In addition, City may withhold payment, in whole, or in part, to such 

extent as may be necessary to protect City from loss because of any acts or omissions by Contractor, 

including any rights to withhold mentioned in the Project Documents or based on stop payment notices. City 

shall pay the retainage pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7107.   

 

6. Independent Contractor Status.  Contractor and its subcontractors shall perform the Work as 

independent contractors and not as officers, employees, agents or volunteers of City. Contractor is engaged 

in an independently established trade, occupation, or business to perform the services required by this 

Agreement and is hereby retained to perform work that is outside the usual course of City’s business. 

Contractor is free from the control and direction of City in connection with the manner of performance of the 

work. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any contractual relationship between 

City and Contractor’s employees or subcontractors, nor shall anything contained in this Agreement be 

deemed to give any third party, including but not limited to Contractor’s employees or subcontractors, any 

claim or right of action against City. 

 

7. Contractor Representations; Standard of Care; Compliance with Law.  Contractor represents that 

Contractor and any subcontractors utilized by Contractor are and will be qualified in the field for which the 

Work is being provided under this Agreement and Contractor and any subcontractors are now, and will be 

throughout their performance of the Work under this Agreement, properly licensed, certified, 

secured/bonded, trained, and/or otherwise qualified and authorized to perform the Work required and 

contemplated by this Agreement, as may be required by law.  Contractor and its subcontractors shall utilize 

the standard of care and skill customarily exercised by members of their profession, shall use reasonable 

diligence and best judgment while performing the Work, and shall comply with all applicable laws, 

11

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 3 

regulations, and industry standards. Contractor shall comply with all Labor Code requirements for public 

works projects applicable to Contractor’s work under this Agreement. 

 

8. Licensing. Contractor shall maintain the following license throughout the performance of this 

Agreement: Class C-39. Contractor shall also obtain and maintain a City of Clovis Business Tax Certificate 

prior to commencing performance of the Work. 

 

9. Payment Bond. When required by applicable law, including Civil Code section 9550, prior to 

commencing any portion of the Work, the Contractor shall apply for and furnish City a payment bond for its 

portion of the Work which shall cover 100% payment for all obligations arising under the Project Documents 

and guaranteeing the payment in full of all claims for labor performed and materials supplied for the Work. 

Only bonds executed by admitted Surety insurers as defined in Code of Civil Procedure section 995.120 shall 

be accepted. The surety insurers must, unless otherwise agreed to by City in writing, at the time of issuance 

of the bonds, have a rating not lower than “A-” as rated by A.M. Best Company, Inc. or other independent 

rating companies. City reserves the right to approve or reject the surety insurers selected by Contractor and to 

require Contractor to obtain bonds from surety insurers satisfactory to City. 

 

10. Performance Bond. Prior to commencing any portion of the Work, the Contractor shall apply for and 

furnish City a performance bond for its portion of the Work which shall cover 100% faithful performance of 

all obligations arising under the Project Documents. Only bonds executed by admitted Surety insurers as 

defined in Code of Civil Procedure section 995.120 shall be accepted. The surety insurers must, unless 

otherwise agreed to by City in writing, at the time of issuance of the bonds, have a rating not lower than “A-” 

as rated by A.M. Best Company, Inc. or other independent rating companies. City reserves the right to 

approve or reject the surety insurers selected by Contractor and to require Contractor to obtain bonds from 

surety insurers satisfactory to City. 

 

11. Performance Requirements. Notwithstanding, and in addition to the provisions of, Section 23 of this 

Agreement, if any Work performed hereunder is not in conformity with the requirements of this Agreement 

and other pertinent documents, City shall have the right to require Contractor to correct the Work in 

conformity with the requirements of this Agreement at no additional increase in the payment to Contractor. 

Contractor shall promptly correct the work rejected by City for failing to conform to the requirements of the 

Project Documents. Remedy for non-compliance or non-performance shall commence within 24 hours of 

notice. City shall also have the right to require Contractor to take all necessary steps to ensure future 

performance of the Work in conformity with the requirements of this Agreement.  In the event Contractor 

fails to correct the Work or fails to take necessary steps to ensure future performance of the Work in 

conformity with the requirements of this Agreement, City shall have the right to immediately terminate this 

Agreement for default. 

 

12. Delay Damages. Time is of the essence with respect to this Agreement and the Work performed by 

Contractor. Contractor’s failure to timely complete the Work under this Agreement shall result in the 

assessment of delay damages at the rate of $1,000 per day for each calendar day the Project remains 

unfinished beyond the Completion Date or Work remains incomplete beyond any phase or milestone 

identified in the schedule as being subject to Delay Damages. The actual occurrence of damages and the 

actual amount of the damages which City would suffer for such delayed completion of the Project are 

impracticable and extremely difficult to calculate.  Damages which City would suffer in the event of such 

delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the other contractor’s work and the Project, disruption 

of activities, costs of administration and supervision, and the incalculable inconvenience and loss suffered by 

the public. Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount set forth herein shall be presumed to be the amount 

of damages which City shall directly incur for each calendar day that completion of the Project is delayed.   

 

13. Identity of Subcontractors.  To the extent the following is not already included in Contractor’s 

12

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 4 

Proposal and subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code section 4107, if applicable, Contractor 

shall, before commencing any work under this Agreement, provide to City in writing: (a) the identity of all 

subcontractors Contractor intends to utilize in Contractor’s performance of the Work on the Project; and (b) a 

detailed description of the full scope of work to be provided by such subcontractors. Contractor shall only 

employ subcontractors pre-approved by City and in no event shall Contractor replace an approved 

subcontractor without the advance written permission of City, with the understanding that City's permission 

will not be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, Contractor shall 

be liable to City for the performance of Contractor’s subcontractors. 

 

14. Subcontractor Provisions.  Contractor shall include in its written agreements with its subcontractors, 

if any, provisions which: (a) impose upon the subcontractors the obligation to provide to City the same 

insurance and indemnity obligations that Contractor owes to City; (b) make clear that City intends to rely 

upon the reports, opinions, conclusions and other work product prepared and performed by subcontractors 

for Contractor; (c) entitle City to impose upon subcontractors the assignment rights found elsewhere in this 

Agreement; and (d) require the payment of prevailing wages in accordance with State and Federal law, if 

applicable. 

 
15. Prevailing Wages; Apprenticeship.  The Project is a public work, the Work shall be performed as a 
public work and pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 et seq. of the Labor Code of the State of California, 
which are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof. Contractor shall be responsible for the 
payment of prevailing wages in accordance with State and Federal law. Contractor shall further be responsible 
for ensuring any subcontractors comply with any requirements for the payment of prevailing wages in 
accordance with State and Federal law, if applicable. The Contractor and any subcontractor under the 
Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each 
calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or 
craft in which such worker is employed. The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the 
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than 
the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor. Contractor shall comply 
with all requirements and obligations relating to apprentices, apprenticeships, and/or apprenticeable crafts or 
trades, as applicable, including but not limited to Labor Code section 1775.5. Contractor shall register with the 
Department of Industrial Relations, if required. 
 

16. Power to Act on Behalf of City.  Contractor is not acting as an agent of City and shall not have any 

right, power, or authority to create any obligation, express or implied, or make representations on behalf of 

City except as may be expressly authorized in advance in writing from time to time by City and then only to 

the extent of such authorization. 

 

17. Record Keeping; Reports.  Contractor shall keep complete records showing the Work performed. 

Contractor shall be responsible and shall require its subcontractors to keep similar records. City shall be 

given reasonable access to the records of Contractor and its subcontractors for inspection and audit purposes. 

Contractor shall provide City with a working draft of all plans, drawings, specifications, and/or reports upon 

reasonable request by City and of all final plans, drawings, specifications, and/or reports prepared by 

Contractor under this Agreement.  

 

18. Ownership and Inspection of Documents. All data, tests, reports, documents, conclusions, opinions, 

recommendations and other work product generated by or produced for Contractor or its subcontractors in 

connection with the Work, regardless of the medium, including physical drawings and materials recorded on 

computer discs or other electronic devices ("Work Product"), shall be and remain the property of City. City 

shall have the right to use, copy, modify, and reuse the Work Product as it sees fit. Upon City's request. 

Contractor shall make available for inspection and copying all such Work Product and all Work product shall 

be turned over to City promptly at City's request or upon termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs 

first. Contractor shall not release any Work Product to third parties without prior written approval of the City 

13

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 5 

Manager. This obligation shall survive termination of this Agreement and shall survive for four (4) years 

from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

19. Confidentiality. All Work Product prepared and performed by and on behalf of Contractor in 

connection with the Work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall be 

disclosed only to City, unless otherwise provided by law or expressly authorized by City. Contractor shall 

not disclose or permit the disclosure of any confidential information acquired during performance of the 

Work, except to its agents, employees and subcontractors who need such confidential information in order to 

properly perform their duties relative to this Agreement. Contractor shall also require its subcontractors to be 

bound to these confidentiality provisions. 

 

20. City Name and Logo. Contractor shall not use City's name or insignia, photographs relating to the 

City projects or work for which Contractor’s services are rendered, or any publicity pertaining to the 

Contractor’s Work under this Agreement in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 

production, internet website, social media, or other similar medium without the prior written consent of City. 

 

21. Conflicts of Interest.  Contractor warrants that neither Contractor nor any of its employees have an 

interest, present or contemplated, in the Work or the Project which would affect Contractor’s or its 

employees’ performance of the Work and the completion of the Project. Contractor further warrants that 

neither Contractor nor any of its employees have real property, business interests or income that will be 

affected by the Work. Contractor covenants that no person having any such interest, whether an employee or 

subcontractor shall perform the Work under this Agreement. During the performance of the Work, 

Contractor shall not employ or retain the services of any person who is employed by the City or a member of 

any City Board or Commission. 

 

22. Non-liability of Officers and Employees.   No officer or employee of City shall be personally liable 

to Contractor, or any successors in interest, in the event of a default or breach by City for any amount which 

may become due Contractor or its successor, or for any breach of any obligation under the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

23. Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall terminate upon completion of the Work, or earlier 

pursuant to the following.  

  

a. Termination by City: For Convenience.  City may, at any time, terminate this Agreement for 

convenience and without cause.  Upon receipt of written notice from City of such termination, the Contractor 

shall (1) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; (2) take actions necessary, or that the City 

may direct, for the protection and preservation of the work; and (3) except for work directed to be performed 

prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase 

orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders.  

 

b.  Termination by City or Contractor: For Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement 

upon ten (10) days prior written notice to the other party of a material breach, and a failure to cure within that 

time period or commence reasonable steps to cure the breach. Contractor’s failure to perform the Work as 

required by this Agreement or failure to correct non-conforming Work shall constitute a material breach of 

this Agreement.  

 

c. Compensation to Contractor Upon Termination.  Contractor shall be paid compensation for 

Work satisfactorily performed prior to notice of termination.  As to any phase partially performed but for 

which the applicable portion of Contractor’s compensation has not become due, Contractor shall be paid the 

reasonable value of the Work performed.  However, in no event shall such payment when added to any other 

payment due under the applicable part of the Work exceed the total compensation of such part as specified in 

14

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 6 

Section 4 herein.  In the event of termination due to Contractor’s failure to perform in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement through no fault of City, City may withhold an amount that would otherwise be 

payable as an offset to City's damages caused by such failure.  

 

d. Effect of Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall: (i) promptly 

discontinue all Work affected, unless the notice directs otherwise; and (ii) deliver or otherwise make 

available to the City, without additional compensation, all Work Product and/or deliverables accumulated by 

the Contractor in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process.  Contractor may not refuse to 

provide such Work Product for any reason whatsoever.   

 

24. Insurance.  Contractor shall satisfy the insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit A. 

 

25. Indemnity and Defense.  Contractor hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the City, its 

officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers harmless from and against all claims, demands, causes 

of action, actions, damages, losses, expenses, and other liabilities, (including without limitation reasonable 

attorney fees and costs of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with the alleged or actual 

acts, errors, omissions or negligence of Contractor or its subcontractors relating to the performance of Work 

described herein to the fullest extent permitted by law, unless the injuries or damages are the result of City's 

sole or active negligence or willful misconduct. Contractor and City agree that said indemnity and defense 

obligations shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any items specified herein that 

arose or occurred during the term of this Agreement. 

 

26. Warranty. Contractor warrants that material and equipment furnished for the Project will be of good 

quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Project Documents, that the Work will be free 

from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted, and that the Work will conform with the 

requirements of the Project Documents. Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions 

not properly approved and authorized, may be considered defective. Such warranty shall extend for a period 

of not less than one (1) year from completion of the Project. If within the applicable warranty period any of 

the Work does not comply with the Project Documents, the Contractor shall correct it after receipt of City’s 

written notice to do so. Contractor shall correct the Work promptly, and passage of the applicable warranty 

period shall not release Contractor from its obligation to correct the Work if Owner provided the written 

notice within the applicable warranty period.   

 

27. Taxes. Contractor agrees to pay all taxes, licenses, and fees levied or assessed by any governmental 

agency on Contractor incident to the performance of Work under this Agreement, and unemployment and 

workers’ compensation insurance, social security, or any other taxes upon the wages of Contractor, its 

employees, agents, and representatives.  Contractor agrees to obtain and renew an annual business tax 

certificate from City and pay the applicable annual business registration tax to City during the term of this 

Agreement. 

 

28. Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any duties or obligations hereunder shall be assignable by 

Contractor without the prior written consent of City.  In the event of an assignment to which City has 

consented, the assignee shall agree in writing to personally assume and perform the covenants, obligations, 

and agreements herein contained.  In addition, Contractor shall not assign the payment of any monies due 

Contractor from City under the terms of this Agreement to any other individual, corporation or entity.  City 

retains the right to pay any and all monies due Contractor directly to Contractor. 

 

29. Form and Service of Notices.  Any and all notices or other communications required or permitted by 

this Agreement or by law to be delivered to, served upon, or given to either party to this Agreement by the 

other party shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly delivered, served or given by one of the 

following methods: 

15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 7 

 

a. Personally delivered to the party to whom it is directed.  Service shall be deemed the date of 

delivery. 

 

b. Delivered by e-mail to a known address of the party to whom it is directed provided the e-

mail is accompanied by an acknowledgment of receipt by the other party.  Service shall be deemed the date 

of acknowledgement. 

 

c.  Delivery by a reliable overnight delivery service, ex., Federal Express, receipted, addressed 

to the addressees set forth below the signatories to this Agreement.  Service shall be deemed the date of 

delivery. 

 

d. Delivery by deposit in the United States mail, first class, postage prepaid.  Service shall be 

deemed delivered ninety-six (96) hours after deposit. 

 

30. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the Project Documents, represents the entire 

Agreement between City and Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, 

either written or oral with respect to the subject matter herein.  This Agreement may be amended only by 

written instrument signed by both City and Contractor. 

 

31. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 

parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

 

32. Authority.  The signatories to this Agreement warrant and represent that they have the legal right, 

power, and authority to execute this Agreement and bind their respective entities. Evidence of Consultant’s 

authority is attached as Exhibit D. 

 

33. Severability.  In the event any term or provision of this Agreement is declared to be invalid or illegal 

for any reason, this Agreement will remain in full force and effect and will be interpreted as though such 

invalid or illegal provision were not a part of this Agreement.  The remaining provisions will be construed to 

preserve the intent and purpose of this Agreement and the parties will negotiate in good faith to modify any 

invalidated provisions to preserve each party’s anticipated benefits. 

 

34. Applicable Law and Interpretation and Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California.  The language of all parts of this Agreement shall, in all cases, be 

construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either party.  This 

Agreement is entered into by City and Contractor in the County of Fresno, California.  Contractor shall 

perform the Work required under this Agreement in the County of Fresno, California.  Thus, in the event of 

litigation, venue shall only lie with the appropriate state or federal court in Fresno County. 

 

35. Amendments and Waiver.  This Agreement shall not be modified or amended in any way, and no 

provision shall be waived, except in writing signed by the parties hereto.  No waiver of any provision of this 

Agreement shall be deemed, or shall constitute, a waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor 

shall any such waiver constitute a continuing or subsequent waiver of the same provision.  Failure of either 

party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the right to compel 

enforcement of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.   

 

36. Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to confer any rights upon 

any party not a signatory to this Agreement. 

 

16

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 8 

37. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures 

may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall 

be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 

 

38. Alternative Dispute Resolution.  If a dispute arises out of or relating to this Agreement, or the alleged 

breach thereof, and if said dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good 

faith to settle the dispute by non-binding mediation before resorting to litigation.  The mediator shall be 

mutually selected by the parties, but in case of disagreement, the mediator shall be selected by lot from 

among two nominations provided by each party.  All costs and fees required by the mediator shall be split 

equally by the parties, otherwise each party shall bear its own costs of mediation.  If mediation fails to 

resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days, either party may pursue litigation to resolve the dispute. 

 

Demand for mediation shall be in writing and delivered to the other party to this Agreement.   

A demand for mediation shall be made within reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other matter in 

question has arisen.  In no event shall the demand for mediation be made after the date when institution of 

legal or equitable proceedings based on such a claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by 

California statues of limitations. 

 

39. Non-Discrimination.  Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of any protected class under 

federal or State law in the performance of the Work or with respect to any Contractor employees or 

applicants for employment.  Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors are bound to this provision. A 

protected class, includes, but is not necessarily limited to race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, 

sex, sexual orientation, marital status, and disability. 

 

Now, therefore, the City and Contractor have executed this Agreement on the date(s) set forth below. 

 

 

CONTRACTOR     CITY OF CLOVIS 

 

 

By: __________________________   By: ______________________________ 

        John Holt, City Manager 

 

Date: __________________    Date: ______________________ 

 

 

 

Party Identification and Contact Information: 

 

Contractor      City of Clovis  

Universal Coatings, Inc.     Facility Maintenance  

Attn: Kim Nulick     Attn: Stephen Frankian  

Title: Vice President     Title: Facility Maintenance & Purchasing Manager 

5191 E. Dakota Ave     1033 Fifth Street 

Fresno, CA 93727     Clovis, CA  93612   

Kim@universalcoatings.net    Stephenf@cityofclovis.com 

559-233-6300      559-324-2705  

        

 

 

 

17

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 9 

ATTEST 

 

       _______________________________ 

       _____________, City Clerk 

        

 

       APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

       ______________, City Attorney 
file:///J:\WDOCS\00601\037\AGT\00808561.DOC 

 

18

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 10 

EXHIBIT A 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Prior to commencement of the Work, Contractor shall take out and maintain at its own expense the insurance 

coverage required by this Exhibit A. Contractor shall cause any subcontractor with whom Contractor 

contracts for the performance of Work pursuant to this Agreement to take out and maintain equivalent 

insurance coverage.  Said insurance shall be maintained at all times during Contractor’s performance of 

Work under this Agreement, and for any additional period specified herein. All insurance shall be placed 

with insurance companies that are licensed and admitted to conduct business in the State of California and 

are rated at a minimum with an "A:VII" by A.M. Best Company, unless otherwise acceptable to the City.     

 

a. Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain the following types of insurance 

with limits no less than specified: 

 

(i)   General Liability Insurance (including operations, products and completed operations 

coverages) in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and 

property damage.  If Commercial General Liability insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is 

used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 

04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  The General Liability 

Insurance shall be maintained for a period of ten (10) years following the earlier of completion of the Work 

by Contractor or termination of this Agreement. 

  

 (ii)   Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by the State of California. 

 

(iii)   Business Automobile Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per accident 

for bodily injury and property damage. 

 

 (iv) Umbrella or Excess Liability. In the event Contractor purchases an Umbrella or Excess 

insurance policy(ies) to meet the “Minimum Limits of Insurance,” this insurance policy(ies) shall “follow 

form” and afford no less coverage than the primary insurance policy(ies). In addition, such Umbrella or 

Excess insurance policy(ies) shall also apply on a primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of the 

City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. 

 

If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall be entitled to 

coverage at the higher limits maintained.   

 

b. Other Insurance Provisions.  The general liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 

 

(i) The City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be covered as 

insured's with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by or on behalf 

of the Contractor; and with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of 

the Contractor including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.  

General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at 

least as broad as ISO Form 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33 or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 

forms if later revisions used). 

 

(ii) For any claims related to the Work performed pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor’s 

insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, 

19

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 11 

and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees, 

agents or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 

(iii) Each insurance policy required by this section shall be endorsed to state that the City shall 

receive written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the cancellation, non-renewal, or material modification 

of the coverages required herein. 

 

(iv) Contractor grants to the City a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 

Contractor may acquire against the City by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. 

Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but 

this provision applies regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement 

from the insurer. 

 

(v) Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City of 

Clovis Risk Services. The City may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower deductible or 

retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and 

defense expenses within the retention.  

 

c. Evidence of Coverage.  Contractor shall deliver to City written evidence of the above 

insurance coverages, including the required endorsements prior to commencing Work under this Agreement; 

and the production of such written evidence shall be an express condition precedent, notwithstanding 

anything to the contrary in this Agreement, to Contractor’s right to be paid any compensation under this 

Agreement.  City's failure, at any time, to object to Contractor’s failure to provide the specified insurance or 

written evidence thereof (either as to the type or amount of such insurance), shall not be deemed a waiver of 

City's right to insist upon such insurance later. 

 

d. Maintenance of Insurance.  If Contractor fails to furnish and maintain the insurance required 

by this section, City may (but is not required to) purchase such insurance on behalf of Contractor, and the 

Contractor shall pay the cost thereof to City upon demand, and City shall furnish Contractor with any 

information needed to obtain such insurance.  Moreover, at its discretion, City may pay for such insurance 

with funds otherwise due Contractor under this Agreement. 

 

e. Subcontractors. If the Contractor should subcontract all or any portion of the work to be 

performed in this Agreement, the Contractor shall cover the subcontractor, and/or require each subcontractor 

to adhere to all the requirements contained herein. Similarly, any cancellation, lapse, reduction or change of 

subcontractor’s insurance shall have the same impact as described above.  

 

f. Special Risks or Circumstances.  The City reserves the right to modify these requirements, 

including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 

circumstances.    

 

g. Indemnity and Defense.  Except as otherwise expressly provided, the insurance requirements 

in this section shall not in any way limit, in either scope or amount, the indemnity and defense obligations 

separately owed by Contractor to City under this Agreement. 

20

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 12 

  EXHIBIT B 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Re-coat of existing roofing system on Administration Building at the Corporation Yard. Bids also included 

Tuff Coat waterproofing system at all internal stucco walls per the project specifications. 

 

SCHEDULE 

 

Proposed schedule is Thirty (30) Working days from Notice to Proceed.  

 

21

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 13 

EXHIBIT C 

CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL 

 

22

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 14 

 

23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 15 

 
 

24

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 16 

 
 

25

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 17 

 
 

26

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 18 

 
 

27

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 19 

 
 

28

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 20 

 
 

29

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 21 

 
 

30

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 22 

 
 

31

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 23 

 
 

32

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 24 

 
 

33

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



Prepared: Feb. 2021 25 

EXHIBIT D 

SIGNING AUTHORITY 

 
 

34

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: April 11, 2022 

SUBJECT: Consider Introduction – Ord. 22-___, Amending Clovis Municipal Code 
Section 2.1.32 establishing salaries of City Councilmembers and 
increasing the present salary to become effective after the November 
2022 municipal election. 

Staff: Karey Cha, City Clerk 

Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENT: 1.  Ordinance amending City Council salary  

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to consider the introduction of an ordinance amending the Clovis 
Municipal Code Section 2.1.32 establishing salaries of City Councilmembers. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
City Council salaries were last adjusted in 2018 and should be reviewed periodically to 
provide reasonable compensation for City Council duties as provided by law. Staff is 
recommending the City Council consider an adjustment to the current monthly salary set at 
$1,455. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to state law governing general law cities, the City Council may increase the present 
salary on an annual basis that would only become effective after the general municipal 
election and when the new term of office begins.  The next general municipal election is 
scheduled for November 2022. 
 
The last time City Council salaries were reviewed in 2021, no action was taken to amend 
the ordinance to increase City Council salaries. The City Council salaries are presently set 
at $1,455 per month. 

35

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 
The Clovis Municipal Code authorizes that City Council salaries be set in accordance with 
state law, and any salary increase adopted would only become effective at the beginning of 
the next new term of office.  The California Government Code Section 36516 provides that 
the City Council may set the salary at $600 per month for cities with a population between 
75,000 and 150,000 or the City Council may increase the salary by 5% for each calendar 
year from the operative date of the last adjustment.  In this case, the operative date of the 
last adjustment was March 2019.  The maximum that could be increased would be 15% (3 
years x 5%).  
 
Staff is recommending Council consider a few options: 

 
1. Current salary is $1,455 and could be increased by 15% per state law which 

would increase the monthly salary to $1,673. 
 

2. In 2018, Council directed staff to increase their salary to an amount equal to 
what city employees received over a two-year term.  Council approved a salary 
increase in the amount of 6.5% (staff received a 3% increase 7/1/2017, and a 
3.5% increase on 7/1/2018). A similar proposal for 2022 would increase salaries 
4.0% (staff received a 2.0% increase 7/1/2020, and a 2.0% increase on 
7/1/2021).  If Council chose this option, salary would increase from $1,455 to 
$1,513 (4.0% increase). 
 

3. Do nothing. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
If approved, this adjustment would increase the City Council salary expense by 
approximately $13,095 for Option 1 above, and approximately $3,492 for Option 2 above - 
both on an annualized basis.  Option 3 would not increase the cost to the City.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
City Council salaries were last adjusted in 2018 and should be reviewed periodically to 
provide reasonable compensation for City Council duties as provided by law.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
As directed, the ordinance amendments will be introduced and subsequently presented for 
adoption. 
 
Prepared by: Karey Cha, City Clerk 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH 

36

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



ORDINANCE 22- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
AMENDING SECTION 2.1.32 OF CHAPTER 2.1 OF TITLE 2 OF THE CLOVIS 

MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO SALARIES OF COUNCILMEMBERS 
 
The City Council of the City of Clovis does ordain as follows: 

Section 1 Section 2.1.32 of Chapter 2.1 of Title 2 of the Clovis Municipal Code 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Salaries of Councilmembers.  

 
Each member of the Council, until the date on which one or more members of the 
Council begins a new term of office, shall continue to receive the current salary of 
One Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty Five and no/100ths Dollars ($1,455.00) per 
month. 
 
From and after the date on which one or more members of the Council begins a 
new term of office, each member of the Council shall receive as salary, the sum of 
- to be determined based on Council discussion on April 11, 2022 - per month. 
 
Section 2 This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force from and after 
thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. 
 
 
APPROVED:   April 11, 2022 
 
 
 
__________________________   ___________________________ 
          Mayor             City Clerk 
 
* * * * * * * * * * * *         * 
 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced and read at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on April 11, 2022, and was adopted at a regular meeting of said 
Council held on April 18, 2022, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
DATED:         April 18, 2022 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
                                 City Clerk 

Attachment 1 
37

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: April 11, 2022 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Authorize the City Manager to execute an 
Amendment to the Disposition and Development Agreement and Grant 
Deed Containing Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions with Innovative 
Development and Living Solutions of California to provide an additional 
$75,000 in grant funding, secure two additional affordable housing units 
and ensure the continued affordability and availability of the Magnolia 
Crossing supportive senior housing development. 

Staff: Claudia Cazares, Management Analyst 

Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Amendment to the Disposition and Development Agreement and 
Grant Deed Containing Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute an Amendment to the Disposition 
and Development Agreement and Grant Deed Containing Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions with Innovative Development and Living Solutions of California, to provide $75,000 
in grant funding, secure two additional affordable housing units, and to ensure the continued 
affordability and availability of the Magnolia Crossing supportive senior housing development. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Innovative Development and Living Solutions of California (IDLSC), the owner/operator of 
Magnolia Crossing, has dutifully been operating the senior supportive housing development 
since its opening in February 2018. Over the last two years, IDLSC has experienced pandemic 
related cost increases, reduction in tenants, and additional COVID related costs, all while caring 
for the fragile low-income senior population. IDLSC is requesting a $75,000 grant for operational 
costs and support and in turn will provide an additional two housing units as low-income housing, 
at the project site, for a total of 26 affordable and income restricted units. 

38

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



BACKGROUND 
Magnolia Crossing Senior Assisted Living center is a 48-unit, mixed-income community that 
provides assisted living and memory care for senior residents. Of the 48 units, 24 are currently 
income restricted and leased at affordable rates. The City of Clovis participated in the 
development of the project by selling the land to IDLSC, which was previously purchased by the 
City with Redevelopment Agency funds and providing a grant to assist with development costs. 
Through its wholly controlled landowner IDLS Sierra Avenue LLC, the developer was successful 
in receiving New Market Tax Credits to complete development financing for the project. Magnolia 
Crossing opened its doors in February 2018 and successfully operated in its initial years by filling 
a niche service of affordable senior housing plus supportive services. In addition to providing 
much needed affordable housing, the development also provides daily meals, transportation, 
laundry, housekeeping, other various activities, and medical services management. IDLSC has 
40 employees. 
 
Since March 2020, IDLSC has struggled to maintain its financial strength, as have many service 
providers in the country. Magnolia Crossing’s operations experienced financial stress due to 
COVID-19 related impacts, such as: unexpected staff loss, cost increases, inflation, paying for 
third-party services, overtime needed to cover loss of staff, and COVID testing and PPE costs.  
Additionally, vacancy rates were also affected, currently leaving Magnolia Crossing with 10 
vacancies. 
 
IDLSC has diligently addressed the tumultuous times by applying for and receiving a PPP loan, 
an SBA loan, and an additional loan from another project partner. They have requested the City 
provide grant funding after being unsuccessful in receiving other financial subsidies typically 
available to senior housing providers, as those resources are prioritized for hospitals and skilled 
nursing facilities.  
 
City staff requests Council approval of a $75,000.00 grant to maintain operational viability of the 
project. In return, the owner will income restrict an additional 2 rental units, for a total of 26 
affordable rental housing units for the remainder of the 55-year affordability period.  The City 
Manager will execute an Amendment to the Disposition and Development Agreement and Grant 
Deed Containing Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions to secure the additional income 
restricted units. IDLSC management staff plans to refinance existing major debt in 2023 by 
applying to the Department of Housing and Urban Development for permanent financing and 
further ensuring financial stability for the project by securing lower monthly mortgage costs.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funds are available from Housing Successor Agency program funds. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The grant funds would secure continued operation and affordability of a much-needed senior 
assisted living facility, which is administered by a local non-profit partner, and provide two 
additional low-income affordable housing units. 
 
 
 

39

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Execution of Amendment to the Disposition and Development Agreement and Grant Deed 
Containing Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. 
 
Prepared by: Claudia Cazares, Affordable Housing Management Analyst 
 

Reviewed by: City Manager JH  

40

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

1 

 

 

DRAFT 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY, AND  ) 

WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO:   ) 

      ) 

City of Clovis     ) 

1033 Fifth Street    ) 

Clovis, California 93612   ) 

ATTN: City Manager    ) (Space above provided for Recorder) 

No recording or filing fee required; This document exempt from fee 

pursuant to California Government Code sections 6103 and 27383. 

 

AMENDMENT TO DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND GRANT 

DEED CONTAINING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

 

32 WEST SIERRA AVENUE, CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 93612 

 

APN 492-020-51t 

(FRESNO COUNTY) 

 

This Amendment to Disposition and Development Agreement and Grant Deed Containing 

Covenants Conditions and Restrictions (“DDA/CCRs Amendment”) is entered into effective on 

the last date executed, between the City of Clovis, a California general law city (“City”), 

Innovative Development and Living Solutions of California, a California non-profit corporation 

(“Developer”), and IDLS Sierra Avenue LLC, a California limited liability company 

(“Landowner”) with respect to the following Recitals, which are a substantive part of this 

Agreement: 

 

RECITALS 

A. Developer owns and operates a senior assisted rental living facility at 32 West Sierra 

Avenue in the City of Clovis (“Facility”). City, in its capacity as Housing Successor Agency to the 

Clovis Community Development Agency (“CCDA”) provided a vacant property site for 

construction of the Facility to Developer as a grant pursuant to a Disposition and Development 

Agreement entered on August 4, 2014, as last amended by a Fourth Amendment on October 10, 

2016 (“DDA”), and associated Grant Deed containing conditions, covenants, and restrictions 

governing use of the Property (“CCRs”). The CCRs were recorded in the Fresno County 

Recorder’s Office on November 16, 2016, DOC-2016-0159470-00. The Facility site is legally 

described in Attachment 1. 

 

B. The DDA and CCRs impose certain affordable housing requirements, as set forth in those 

documents. Specifically: the DDA and CCRs require that Developer construct 48 units and restrict 

24 of those units to Extremely Low Income, Very Low Income, Lower Income, or Moderate 

Income Households, with not less than 14 of those units being restricted to Lower Income and 

below households.   

 

C. The Facility opened in 2018, and has been continuously in operation since that time. The 

Facility provides essential supportive housing for Clovis seniors, with half of those units being 

Attachment 1 41

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

2 

 

 

restricted to affordable rents. Operation of the Facility is consistent with the former CCDA 

redevelopment plans, and the goals of the Housing Successor Agency.  

 

D. To secure financing for the Facility through use of the New Markets Tax Credit program, 

Developer transferred ownership of the Facility site to Landowner, a wholly controlled entity of 

Developer. The Grant Deed from Developer to Landowner was recorded in the Fresno County 

Recorder’s Office on December 22, 2016, DOC-2016-0175819-00. No changes were made to the 

CCRs with the transfer from Developer to Landowner.  Pursuant to Section 19 of the CCRs, City 

is a third-party beneficiary to the CCRs and no changes may be made to the CCRs without the 

written consent of City.  

 

E. During the past two years, due to the global COVID-19 pandemic, Developer has operated 

the Facility under severe economic distress. Developer has identified significant staff losses and 

dramatic cost increases due to COVID pay, third party staffing, overtime, COVID testing, and 

personal protective equipment.  In addition, the Facility is facing inflationary cost increases in all 

aspects of the business.   

 

F. Developer has pursued available grants and funding sources to keep the Facility operating 

in a safe manner caring for the most vulnerable and fragile population. Despite receiving some 

funding, Developer has expressed concern with the continued viability of the Facility and the lack 

of, or limited availability, of additional funding sources. In that regard, Developer has requested 

operational support in the form of an additional grant from the City to stay open. The grant will 

ensure that the facility has adequate operating expenses pending the receipt of additional funding, 

which is in progress. 

 

G. To support City’s affordable housing goals, and the goals of supporting a diverse 

population of all income and age levels, City is willing to make another grant to Developer in the 

amount of $75,000.00 cash for the purposes stated herein and with the requirement that Developer 

provide two additional affordable housing units. The money will come from the City’s Housing 

Successor Agency fund balance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, City, Developer, and Landowner agree and consent to amend the DDA 

and CCRs in the following particulars: 

 

1. DDA Section 6, Financing.  Section 6.3 is hereby added to the DDA to read as follows: 

 

6.3. Additional Grant for Operating Expenses.  City shall provide to Developer a grant 

in the principal amount of $75,000.00 in one lump payment (“Grant”).  The Grant will be 

dispersed within fourteen (14) days after this DDA/CCRs Amendment is fully executed. The 

Grant shall be used solely for Facility operating expenses. 

 

2. DDA Exhibit 6 Scope of Development and CCRS Section 3 Affordable Housing. Exhibit 6 

Scope of Development to the DDA and Section 3 of the CCRs set forth the affordable housing 

requirements for the Facility. Those documents shall be amended to require that Developer restrict 

26 units, instead of 24 units, to Extremely Low Income, Very Low Income, Lower Income, or 

Moderate Income Households. In particular to the CCRs, the first paragraph of Section 3 of the 

CCRs shall be amended to read as follows: 

42

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

3 

 

 

 3. Affordable Housing. Grantee shall make available, restrict occupancy to, and lease 

twenty-six (26) of the Housing Units to Extremely Low Income Households, Very Low Income 

Households, Lower Income Households, or Moderate Income Households all at an Affordable 

Rent (“Affordable Units”), pursuant to the terms set forth in the Agreement.  Fourteen (14) of the 

Affordable Units shall be leased to Lower Income and below Households. 

 

3. All Other Terms Remain in Effect. All other terms of the DDA and CCRs (including the 

remaining provisions of CCRs Section 3) shall remain in full force and effect, and shall be fully 

applicable to the two additional Affordable Units.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this DDA/CCRs Amendment to be 

signed by their duly authorized officers, agents or officials who represent that they have authority 

to sign this Agreement on behalf of City, Developer and Landowner, and bind the respective 

parties to the terms of this Agreement, as of the signed date. Developer and Landowner have 

provided proof of authority to City which City is entitled to rely upon. 

 

By signing this DDA/CCRs Amendment, Landowner expressly consents to the amendment to the 

CCRs, which amended CCRs shall run with the land as if first applied with the original Grant 

Deed from City to Developer.    

 

DEVELOPER 

 

INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT AND 

LIVING SOLUTIONS OF 

CALIFORNIA, a California nonprofit 

corporation 

 

By: _______________________________ 

Michael Sigala, President 

 

Dated:_____________________________ 

 

LANDOWNER 

 

IDLS SIERRA AVENUE LLC, a California 

limited liability company 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Its Managing Partner, Innovative 

Development And Living Solutions Of 

California, a California nonprofit 

corporation, Michael Sigala, 

President 

 

  

CITY 

 

CITY OF CLOVIS, a California general law 

city 

 

By: _______________________________ 

John Holt, City Manager 

 

Dated:_____________________________ 

 

Attest: 

 

By: _______________________________ 

Karey Cha, City Clerk 

 

Dated:_____________________________ 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

By: _______________________________ 

Scott G. Cross, City Attorney 

 

Dated:_____________________________ 

Dated: ______________________________ 

 

 

43

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.



 

4 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
J:\wdocs\00604\129\agt\00935894.DOCX 

44

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.


	Top
	AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.	ADM - April 4, 2022 Minutes 220411
	ADM - April 4, 2022 Minutes

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.	GSD - Administration Building Roof Coating Project 220411
	GSD - Corporation Yard Administration Building Roof Coating Project SR
	GSD - Corporation Yard Administration Building Roof Coating Project ATT 1 Contract

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 3.	ADM - Intro Ord Council Salary 220411
	ADM - Council Salary Adj - SR
	Admin - Council Salary Adj - ATT 1 - Ordinance

	AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.	ADM - Magnolia Crossing 220411
	ADM - Magnolia Crossing Loan SR
	ADM - Magnolia Crossing Loan ATT 1 Amendment to Agreement

	Bottom

